ONONDAGA FREE LIBRARY MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of Onondaga Free Library is to provide access to all for lifelong learning, innovative programs and services, and to promote the literacy and well-being of the community.

2022 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Chris McCarthy, President
Colleen Mahoney, Vice President
Stephanie Aldrich, Treasurer
Beth Crump, Secretary
Tom Bradley, Trustee
Rob Price, Trustee
Laurie Smith, Trustee

Non-Voting Members

Susan Morgan, Library Director Alyssa Newton, Assistant Library Director Lisa Goodwin, Town of Onondaga Liaison

Board Meetings are held on the fourth Wednesday of the month at 6:00 pm at the library. The public is welcome and encouraged to attend.

- EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Comprised of the Board Officers, this committee reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on such items as budget, proposals, major purchases, etc.
- FINANCE COMMITTEE Supervises financial affairs and makes recommendations concerning investment of permanent funds. Receives the annual budget from the Director, and upon approval authorizes its presentation to the Board.
- BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE Periodically inspects the library building and grounds, and reports back to the Board any concerns and recommendations for improvement or repair.
- NOMINATING COMMITTEE- Presents candidates for Trustees and slate of officers.
- TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE Reviews innovations in technology and determines their relevance to library service and function. Makes recommendations to the Board based upon their findings.
- VOLUNTEER AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE Addresses issues concerning library staff and volunteers such as pay, benefits, job descriptions, and recognition.
- CONSTRUCTION AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE Ad hoc committee. Assists in planning expansion project.

CONSTITUTION OF THE ONONDAGA FREE LIBRARY

1988 (REVISED MARCH 23, 2005)

ARTICLE I - NAME

This organization is and shall be known as the Onondaga Free Library existing by virtue of the provisions in the Absolute Charter, Number 10,722 granted by the Regents of the University of the State of New York on February 24, 1972, and exercising the powers and authority and assuming the responsibilities delegated to it under said charter.

ARTICLE II - MANAGEMENT

- Membership the library is maintained solely as a public service for the benefit and free
 use on equal terms by all the people of the community. All residents of the Town of
 Onondaga are members.
- 2. The business and affairs of the Onondaga Free Library shall be managed and conducted by a Board of Trustees that shall be no fewer than seven and no more than fifteen in number elected by members of the library at the annual meeting from a list of names submitted by a nominating committee and/or additional names nominated from the floor. Trustees shall come from the area served by the library.
- 3. The term of office for members of the Board of Trustees shall be limited to three successive terms. A trustee may be reappointed or re-elected for any additional successive term(s) after a one year interim.
- 4. Vacancies which occur for reasons other than expiration of term shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term by the Board of Trustees. Any trustee who misses three consecutive regular meetings of the board shall be deemed to have resigned as a trustee, and the vacancy shall be filled at the next regular meeting.

ARTICLE III - OFFICERS

- 1. The officers of the Board of Trustees shall be elected at the first regular meeting following the annual meeting and they shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer elected from among the Board of Trustees.
- 2. The officers shall serve a term of one year from the regular meeting at which they are elected and until their successors are duly elected. Tenure of the President, Vice President and Secretary shall be limited to two consecutive full terms of one year each. Tenure for the Treasurer may be four consecutive terms of one year each.
- 3. The President shall preside at all meetings of the board, authorize calls for any special meetings, appoint all committees, execute all documents authorized by the board, serve as ex-officio voting member of all committees, and generally perform all duties associated with the office.

- 4. The Vice President, in the event of the absence or disability of the President, or of a vacancy in the office, shall assume and perform the duties and functions of the President.
- 5. The Secretary shall keep a true and accurate record of all meetings of the board; and shall perform such other duties as are generally associated with that office.
- 6. The Treasurer shall be the chief disbursing officer of the board. He/she assists the Director in financial and budget preparation. Oversees bookkeeping functions and presents monthly financial statements to the board; also prepares or supervises preparation of annual financial statements and tax returns as required. The Treasurer submits vouchers to the town authorities for any monies receivable. An Assistant Treasurer who need not be a Trustee may be selected by the board to assist the Treasurer in the performance of his duties. (Either shall be bonded in an amount as may be required by a resolution of the board.)

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS

- 1. Regular meetings shall be held normally once a month, time and place to be established by the Board of Trustees at the Annual Meeting. Written notice thereof shall be sent to all trustees by the Secretary at least one week prior to such regular meetings, and a public notice shall be posted on the library bulletin board.
- 2. A quorum consists of a majority of the total number of Trustees. A quorum must be present to conduct business.
- 3. Special meetings may be called by the Secretary at the direction of the President, or at the request of at least one third of the Trustees, for the transaction of business as stated in the call for the special meeting.
- 4. A duly publicized meeting of the Library Association shall be held once a year at a time and place to be determined by the Board of Trustees to elect trustees in accordance with this Constitution. The Board of Trustees shall issue a public notice of the annual meeting at least two weeks prior to any such meeting.
- 5. Roberts Rules of Order shall be used in conducting meetings.

ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES

- The President shall appoint a Nominating Committee, a Building Committee, a Finance Committee and such other committees as the business of the board may require from time to time. These committees shall consist of one or more members and shall be considered to be discharged upon completion of the term of office of the President.
- 2. The Nominating Committee shall carry out two functions:
 - a. to present a list of candidates for trustees at the Annual Meeting or at any regular meeting when a vacancy occurs, and
 - b. to present a slate of officers at the Annual Meeting
- 3. The Executive Committee shall be composed of the President, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary. The Executive Committee will be at the discretion of the President. The Committee shall review and make recommendations to the Board on

such items as budget, major proposals, major purchases, etc. The Executive Committee can be empowered to act on behalf of the Board of Trustees on any item so deemed necessary by the Board of Trustees.

- 4. The Building and Grounds Committee shall periodically inspect the physical plant and grounds of the library and report important matters to the board with recommendations for improvements or correction of any faults found.
- 5. The Finance and Resource Committee shall have general supervision over the financial affairs of the library and shall make policy recommendations to the Board of Trustees concerning investment of permanent funds received. This committee shall receive the annual budget for the maintenance and operations of the library from the Library Director and upon approval shall authorize its presentation to the Board of Trustees.
- 6. The Resource Committee shall be the fund raising arm of the library board. Fund raising includes establishing programs for the purpose of raising funds; establishing contact with area organizations to share resources with; proposing and writing grants to acquire foundation funds; and exploring other alternatives for financial support.
- 7. All committees shall make a progress report to the board at each of its meetings. No committee shall have other than advisory powers unless the board has delegated specific power to act upon its behalf pending a subsequent meeting of the board for confirmation.

ARTICLE VI – DIRECTOR

- 1. The board shall appoint a qualified Library Director or Librarian who shall be the executive and administrative officer of the library on behalf of the Board of Trustees and under its review and direction.
- 2. The director shall have authority to appoint, promote or dismiss all library employees, providing that such appointments are reported at the next board meeting.
- 3. The director is responsible for the proper direction and supervision of the staff, for the care and maintenance of the library property, for an adequate and proper selection of books and other media in keeping with the stated policy of the board, for the efficiency of service to the public, and for operation within the budgeted appropriation. The director shall also prepare a written annual report to be submitted to the Board of Trustees before the Annual Meeting.
- 4. The director shall attend all meetings, may participate in the discussion and offer professional advice, but is denied a vote upon any question.

ARTICLE VII – AMENDMENTS

1. The Board of Trustees may amend these by-laws by a majority vote of all members provided notice of the amendment has been sent or delivered to each member of the board thirty days prior to the meeting.